<u>Financial Plus Credit Union</u> <u>Contract – Dated July 3, 2023</u>

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1	2
ARTICLE 2 – CHECK OFF	4
ARTICLE 3 – REPRESENTATION	5
ARTICLE 4 – RESPONSIBILITY OF EMPLOYER	6
ARTICLE 5 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	7
ARTICLE 6 – SENIORITY	9
ARTICLE 7 – PART TIME	10
ARTICLE 8 – LAYOFF AND REHIRE	16
ARTICLE 9 – TRANSFERS	17
ARTICLE 10 – FULL TIME WORKING HOURS	18
ARTICLE 11 – HOLIDAY PAY	21
ARTICLE 12 – BEREAVEMENT PAY	22
ARTICLE 13 – JURY DUTY	23
ARTICLE 14 – RATE OF PAY	
ARTICLE 15 – PENSION/401K for full time employees	25
ARTICLE 16 – RETIREE BENEFITS	26
ARTICLE 17 – PERSONAL TIME OFF FOR FULL TIME EMPLOYEES	28
ARTICLE 18 – INSURANCE	31
ARTICLE 19 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE	33
ARTICLE 20 – GENERAL PROVISIONS	36
WAGE SCALE	
DEFINITION OF GROUPS	39
ARTICLE 21 – TERMINATION CLAUSE	40

AGREEMENT

Entered into this **July 3, 2023** between the Financial Plus Credit Union and the Office and Professional Employees International Union Local **459**, AFL-CIO, who do enter into and make binding the Agreement listed herein.

ARTICLE 1

<u>Section 1:</u> The Credit Union, hereinafter referred to as the "Employer," recognizes the Office and Professional Employees International Union AFL-CIO **459** (OPEIU), hereinafter referred to as the "Union," as the exclusive representative for all hourly rated employees of the Employer in the Bargaining Unit for the purpose of collective bargaining, with respect to rate of pay, hours and other conditions of employment.

Matters coming up during the life of this Agreement which concern wages, hours or working conditions of the employees and which are not included in this Agreement may, by mutual consent, be agreed upon and executed in writing by the parties (Employer/Executive Board President or other Executive Board Officer) hereto and made a part hereof.

All signed, documented Agreements, whether by Side Letter, Individual Memorandum or Letter of Understanding between the parties in force as of the effective date of this Agreement shall be incorporated by reference into this Agreement and shall continue on in accordance with their terms for the life of this Agreement.

<u>Section 2:</u> It shall be a condition of employment that all permanent employees covered by this Agreement shall be and shall remain members in good standing of Local **459**, OPEIU, throughout the period of their employment unless such condition is otherwise prohibited by State or National Law.

On termination of employment, Union dues must be current before Personal Time Off (PTO) will be paid.

<u>Section 3:</u> The employer, or any of its officers, will not interfere with, discriminate against, restrain or coerce employees because of lawful activity in Local **459**, OPEIU, nor will it attempt to discourage membership in said local union, nor will it discriminate in anyway, against any employee because of his or her political or religious beliefs, nor because of race, color, sex, age or National Origin.

The practice of the employer is to consider all applicants for employment and to consider all employees for placement, developmental programs, job assignments, transfers, promotions and any other status change, regardless of race, color, gender, national origin, religion, age, sexual orientation, disability, or genetic information. The employer's goal is to maintain a reasonable workforce mixture.

<u>Section 4:</u> Unemployed members of OPEIU Local **459** shall be given consideration when employment positions become available, provided the Bargaining Agent of Financial Plus Credit Union has provided a list of available candidates. The employer shall determine the desirability and qualifications of such prospective employees.

<u>Section 5:</u> All employees may use the Union Label of Local **459**, Office and Professional Employees International Union, AFL-CIO.

<u>Section 6: Co-op Employees:</u> There shall be no more than **fifteen (15)** Co-op employees working at any time during the term of the Agreement. Co-ops must be paid at least minimum wage. Co-op employees cannot displace any seniority employee. Co-op employees cannot join the Union. Co-op employees will not receive any benefits covered by the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Co-op employees shall be limited to working no more than thirty-five (35) hours per week **and will work equal to or less than an average of 30 hours per calendar year.**

ARTICLE 2 – CHECK OFF

<u>Section 1:</u> Upon signed authorization of the employees, the Employer agrees to deduct Union dues and assessments as levied and officially designated by the Union within the state and federal laws from the first pay of each month and shall pay the same to the Secretary-Treasurer of Local **459**, OPEIU, AFL-CIO within ten (10) days of this deduction. The Employer also agrees to send with the dues check, a list of all employees who have been hired, lost seniority for any reason, been laid off or recalled from lay off, gone on any type of leave of absence or returned from any type of leave during the preceding month.

<u>Section 2:</u> Within a reasonable period of time after an employee obtains seniority, the Bargaining Agent will be allowed a period not to exceed **sixty (60)** minutes on the Employer's time, per new employee, to inform the new union member of the union procedures. If agreed to by the Employer, the Bargaining Agent may combine **60** minute periods in order to address more than one new seniority employee.

<u>Section 3:</u> The Employer shall deduct from the wages of every employee who submits a voluntary authorization form an amount designated by such employee for contribution to the OPEIU J.B. Moss Voice of the Electorate (VOTE) Fund. Such **voluntary** deductions shall be made on the same date that the employee receives their regular pay.

ARTICLE 3 – REPRESENTATION

<u>Section 1:</u> The Union shall select Stewards (including a "Chief Steward") and Bargaining Committee members from amongst the Employees of the Employer. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing of the names of these representatives. The Union shall attempt to secure Stewards at each branch location of the Employer, with no more than four (4) representatives from the same department for bargaining purposes, unless mutually agreed upon between the employer and the stewards. Stewards may have another Steward present as a witness for all discussions with the Employer concerning a dispute over the interpretation of any policy, procedure, or practice of the Employer, or the introduction of new policies, procedures, or practices.

An employee must accept Union representation from a Steward at the office of the employee requiring representation for verbal and written discipline or any grievance through Step 3 of the Grievance Procedure. If the Steward will not be available within a reasonable time, representation shall be provided by a Steward working at the Employer's main office.

<u>Section 2:</u> Bargaining time shall be granted to the Steward with pay during his/her regular scheduled working hours for the prompt bargaining and investigation of grievances and other representation matters with the Employer. If the Steward must leave his/her department to investigate a grievance, he/she shall request verbally such investigation time through his/her supervisor. Within a reasonable time after such time is requested, the supervisor shall notify the Steward and arrangements will be made for the Steward to conduct the requested investigation. If negotiations are conducted during credit union work hours, the Bargaining Committee shall be limited to three (3) credit union employees.

Employees **called to a meeting** concerning disciplinary action shall be entitled to union representation. The Steward shall be allowed to leave his/her department at the time of discipline, if a request for representation is made by the employee.

<u>Section 3:</u> Once filed, only the Chief Steward or President of the Local are authorized to withdraw a grievance. Further, any Memorandum of Understanding with the Employer must be signed by the Chief Steward and the President of the Local Union.

ARTICLE 4 – RESPONSIBILITY OF EMPLOYER

<u>Section 1:</u> The Union recognizes and agrees that the Employer retains the sole right and responsibility to manage and operate the business in all respects and as to all matters in connection with the exercise of such right, subject only to the employee's right to grieve, in accordance with the procedures later provided in this Agreement.

All Employer rights and functions, except those which are clearly and expressly abridged by this Agreement, shall remain vested exclusively in the Employer. It is expressly recognized, merely by way of illustration and not by way of limitation, that such rights and functions include but are not limited to, (1) full and exclusive control of the Employer of the business, the supervision of all operations, the methods, processes, the control of property and the composition, assignment, direction and determination of the size and type of its working forces; (2) the right to determine the work to be done and the standards to be met by the employees covered by this Agreement; (3) the right to change or introduce new operations, methods, processes, means or facilities, to subcontract work for valid economic reasons provided that it does not result in lay off, or reduce the numbers of regular full-time or part-time employees, or to close a department or operation for any legal reason; (4) the right to hire, establish and change work schedules, set hours of work, to make job assignments of employees to maintain the efficiency of the Credit Union and to improve service to members, transfer, promote, demote, release and lay off employees; (5) the right to determine the qualifications of employees, to suspend, discipline and discharge non-probationary employees for cause (unless otherwise provided for in the Agreement) and otherwise to maintain an orderly, effective and efficient operation.

<u>Section 2:</u> It is recognized that the Employer is subject to the provisions of the Federal Credit Union Act and of The Michigan Credit Union Act as amended or as may be amended, and subject to the regulations of the National Credit Union Administration (NCUA), State of Michigan, and the Michigan Department of Insurance and Financial Services (DIFS). Therefore, no provisions of this Agreement shall prevent the elected officers and Committee members from carrying out their responsibilities under the regulations of the NCUA and the State of Michigan based thereon. Nor can said Agreement conflict directly or indirectly with aforementioned Acts and Regulations.

ARTICLE 5 – GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

<u>Section 1:</u> Employees **called to a meeting** concerning disciplinary action shall be entitled to union representation during the interview, upon request. The interview will be held in a private office and whether called or not, a Steward will be notified of any disciplinary action against any employee in writing within two (2) working days of the interview.

<u>Section 2:</u> Any grievance not initiated, taken to the next step, or answered within the time limits specified herein, will be considered settled on the basis of the last answer by the Employer, if the Union does not move it to the next step within the time limits; or on the basis of the Union's demand, if the Employer fails to give its answer within the time limits.

Demands for arbitration and requests to FMCS for a panel of arbitrators must similarly be made within the time limits specified herein or the grievance shall be considered settled on the basis of the last answer given.

Section 3: Time limits may be extended in the grievance procedure by mutual agreement in writing.

Section 4: Grievance Procedure:

Step One: Any employee having a grievance, or a designated member of a group having a grievance, must first fully discuss the grievance in good faith with their supervisor who will attempt to resolve it. An employee may have a Steward present during such a meeting. The failure of the employee to initiate the grievance orally with the supervisor shall bar further processing of the grievance by either the Union or the Employer until this step is completed.

Step Two: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step One of the Grievance Procedure, it shall be presented to the grievant's immediate supervisor in writing, within the timeframe specified below:

Any grievance, with respect to disciplinary action, an alleged violation or interpretation, or administration of this Agreement, shall be filed within ten (10) working days from the date the grievant or the Union first knew or should reasonably have known of the practice or act.

Step Three: The Supervisor shall give their written answer to the grievance filed in Step Two of the Grievance Procedure within three (3) working days, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.

Step Four: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step Three, the Union may request, within five (5) working days, a meeting between its representatives (no more than two (2) non-employees) and the Vice President of Human Resources and/or the President of the Credit Union. The meeting shall take place within ten (10) working days following the appeal of the grievance to Step Four.

If the grievant does not wish to be present, a Steward will take the grievant's place.

Step Five: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step Four of the Grievance Procedure, the Vice President of Human Resource and/or the President/CEO will give the Union a written answer

within three (3) working days following the meeting.

Step Six: If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved in Step Five of the Grievance Procedure, the Union may, within ten (10) working days, notify the Employer in writing of its desire to appeal the matter to arbitration.

- A. The Union shall submit a letter to Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS), with a copy to the Employer within three (3) working days of the submission to FMCS, requesting a list of nine (9) arbitrators, who may be from Indiana, Ohio and Michigan.
- B. Following receipt of this list, the parties will meet within ten (10) working days and attempt to agree on an arbitrator from this list to hear the arbitration case. Failing to agree on an Arbitrator, the parties shall alternately strike a name from the list and the last name remaining shall be the arbitrator.
- C. The cost of the decision shall be split between the parties.
- D. Representatives of the Office and Professional Employees International Union, representatives of Local **459** (not more than one Financial Plus employee), Chief Steward and a Steward may enter the grievance procedure at Step Six of the Grievance Procedure. Both parties shall notify the other as to who will be in attendance.
- E. The Arbitrator shall be empowered, except as his or her powers are limited below, to make a decision in cases of alleged violations or rights expressly accorded by this Agreement. The limitations on the powers of the Arbitrator are as follows:
 - 1. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on both parties. The Arbitrator shall have no power to add to, subtract from or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.
 - 2. When a claim of wrongful discharge, discipline, or layoff is allowed either by The Employer or through Arbitration, recovery for such claim shall be limited to the amount of wages and benefits the employee would otherwise have earned from his or her employment with the Employer during the period of wrongful absence less the following:
 - a. All unemployment compensation received by the employee, unless the employee is required to reimburse the MESC.
 - b. Earnings the employee has earned outside the Employer during the period the employee was off, except for any earnings the employee was receiving prior to removal from payroll.
- F. Mitigation of damage issues may be submitted to the Arbitrator in discharge cases.
- G. All grievances must be submitted to arbitration individually, except multiple grievances filed on the same subject matter.

ARTICLE 6 – SENIORITY

Section 1:

- A. New Full Time employees shall acquire seniority upon completion of an introductory period of ninety (90) calendar days unless extended by mutual agreement, from the date of hiring after which seniority shall be as of the original date of hire. Union dues and contractual benefits (except medical, dental, and vision starting on day one) will begin the first of the month following the completion of the 90 day introductory period.
- B. All employees must qualify for full surety bond without any deductions as a condition of continued employment. An employees' failure to do so will result in loss of employment and seniority.
- C. In the event that an employee who loses full bond-ability grieves his/her dismissal to arbitration, and the arbitrator awards that the employee should be returned to work, the credit union shall, within three (3) working days of receipt of the arbitration award, write the bonding company asking for a review and consideration of the arbitrators opinion and award. In the event that the employee does not become fully bondable as a result, the issue shall be remanded to the arbitrator.
- D. In the event that a leave of absence for other than compensable injury is incurred during the introductory period, the introductory period will be extended to satisfy the ninety (90) day requirement.

Section 2: There will be one seniority list, based off of hire date, for all union employees.

<u>Section 3:</u> Seniority shall be broken for the following reasons:

- A. If the employee quits.
- B. If the employee is discharged for just cause.
- C. If the employee is absent three (3) days without properly notifying the Employer, unless a satisfactory reason is given.
- D. If the employee fails to report to work within three (3) days after the expiration date of a leave of absence unless a satisfactory reason is given.
- E. If the employee is laid off for a continuous period equal to the seniority acquired at the time of such layoff.
- F. If the employee is on a sick leave of absence for a continuous period equal to the seniority acquired at the time of such sick leave.
- G. If the employee is on long-term disability for a continuous period of two (2) years.
- H. If the employee fails to qualify for full surety bond without any deductions.
- I. If the Employer finds the employee falsified their employment application.

<u>Section 4:</u> The Stewards head the seniority list during term of office for purposes of layoff and recall.

ARTICLE 7 – PART TIME

<u>Section 1:</u> The Employer agrees to compensate each part-time employee, **based on hire-date**, at the wage rate referenced in **Wage Scale**, **Group A**.

- A. New Part Time employees shall acquire seniority upon completion of an introductory period of ninety (90) calendar days unless extended by mutual agreement, from the date of hiring after which seniority shall be as of the original date of hire. Union dues and contractual benefits will begin the first of the month following the completion of the 90 day introductory period.
- B. Employees that are rehired within (1) one year of separation or less may retain the same wage scale as when they left the company up to the year 2 scale as outlined in Wage Scale, Group A of this agreement. Upon such rehire, no employee shall exceed their previous pay scale. The employee shall additionally be subject to a reduced introductory period of thirty (30) calendar days.
- C. Employer has the right to hire new part time employees at the **appropriate pay rate within the range specified in 0 year, Group A of the Wage Scale,** based on relevant years of similar work experience. Human Resources reserves the right to increase the **0 year pay rate while the new hire is in the 0 year wage scale.**

<u>Section 2:</u> The total number of part time employees shall not exceed **50%** of the full time employee complement, except as otherwise agreed to by the parties in writing. The Employer shall additionally have the right to replace any part time employee on a leave of absence for 30 days or more.

A part time or a full time employee may be hired or transferred to assume the duties of a part time or full time employee on a leave of absence. A new employee hired to replace a part time or full time employee on a leave of absence, may be retained once the employee on leave of absence returns to work until the part time complement is decreased to **50%**, or below, through natural attrition of the part time staff or the full time staff is increased.

Section 3: Personal Time Off

Part Time PTO (3.8-hour Increments)							
Seniority (Years)	Time Off (Days)	Time Off (Days) Paid Time Off N (Hours)		Time Off (Davs)			
Starting Year	12	22.8	22.8				
After Year 1	17	32.3	32.3				
2 Years	22	41.8	41.8				
3 Years	24	45.6	45.6				
5 Years	27	51.3	51.3				
11 Years	28	53.2	53.2				
15 Years	30	57	57				
20 Years	33	62.7	62.7				
26 Years	34	64.6	64.6				

A. Accrual – Part time employees will accrue PTO at the beginning of the calendar year based upon the following schedule:

- B. During employee's first year of employment, starting PTO will be pro-rated based upon the number of days remaining in the calendar year. (Ex: An employee starting on September 20th would receive 4.8 days PTO for their starting year 103 days/365 days = 0.282 x 12 days = 3.38 days x 3.8 hours = 12.87 total hours starting PTO, 6.44 paid, 6.43 unpaid)
- C. Employees accrue PTO evenly amongst each calendar day they are an active employee. PTO is not accrued when on leave of absence or upon termination of employment. Reference Article 17, Sections 2-5 for all applicable time off procedures.
 - 1. Employees may make-up up to two (2) hours of preauthorized absences per workweek, at the option of the Employer. Such absences may be made up before or after the employees regularly scheduled work day or during lunch or break times, at the mutual agreement of the employee and the Employer.
 - 2. Employees tardy at the beginning of their workday or returning from lunch, will automatically receive an unexcused tardy regardless of the reason and will not receive PTO payment for the first 30 minutes or less or be allowed to make up time. Employees will receive an unexcused tardy if they are more than 30 minutes late, however, beyond the 30 minutes, they will be compensated with personal time off (PTO). They will not be allowed to make up any time that is not pre-approved a full business day in advance.
 - 3. At the discretion of the Supervisor, employees may work their regular schedule on the day of mandatory full staff meetings, provided their regular work time begins immediately after the full staff meeting ends and they work until the end of their regularly scheduled workday, without being charged personal time off (PTO).
- **D.** The Employer must be reimbursed if an employee fails to earn all personal time off (PTO) hours for which payment has been made.
- **E.** PTO requests should be submitted for the Employer's approval at least one week in advance, whenever possible.
- **F.** Full weeks of personal time off (PTO) will supersede partial weeks off. Once PTO has been approved, it can only be changed or canceled upon mutual agreement.
- **G.** Employees who take individual PTO days in increments of less than one full week (Monday through Friday) must be available for work all other days during the workweek that a PTO day(s) is taken.
- **H.** It is required that each part time employee must take at least five (5) consecutive days off per seniority year, beginning their first full calendar year following date of hire. Consecutive days off may consist of PTO or Holiday.
- I. Part time employees are granted Personal Time Off (PTO) as indicated in Article 7, Section 3. Only 9 of these days (34.2 hours) are allowed to be used as call-in (unscheduled) days.

Section 4: Holiday Pay:

A. After **ninety (90) days** of employment part time employees will be paid 3.8 hours holiday pay for each of the holidays full time employees receive, provided they work their normal scheduled

work days before and after the holiday, in accordance with

- **B.** 11, Section 1(A). If an employee is scheduled to work on the holiday and calls in on the holiday, they will not be paid holiday pay.
 - Work performed on any of the holidays referenced in Article 11, Section 1, shall be paid at the regular rate of pay for time worked, in addition to the holiday pay referenced in Article 7, Section 4(A), except New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day which shall be paid at two (2) times the employees regular rate of pay for time worked in addition to the holiday pay referenced in Article 7, Section 4(A).
 - 2. Work performed on Saturday, following a holiday which falls on Friday, or work performed on Saturday, preceding a holiday which falls on Monday, will be paid at the regular rate of pay for time worked, plus an additional \$4.00 per hour.
 - **3.** Part-time employees that work on a holiday referenced in Article 11, Section 1 except Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve, and qualify for holiday pay as outlined in Article 7, Section 4(A), may elect to receive an additional 3.8 paid hours off in lieu of the 3.8 hours holiday pay. Time off, in lieu of pay, will be scheduled at the mutual agreement of the employee and their supervisor.
 - **4.** Holidays referenced in Article 11, Section 1 that fall on a Saturday or Sunday will not be paid as a six day work week. In the event an employee works on said holiday, they will be paid their regular rate of pay for time worked in addition to the 3.8 hours of holiday pay.
 - 5. Part time employees required to work on a holiday referenced in Article 11, Section 1, when all branch offices are closed, will receive a \$100 lump sum bonus payment if they work 7.6 hours or more that day, in addition to pay for time worked and holiday pay.
- **C.** Part time employees with less than **90 calendar days** of service that work a holiday referenced in Article 11, Section 1 shall be paid at the regular rate of pay for time worked, plus an additional \$4.00 per hour. Worked performed on Saturday, following a holiday which falls on Friday, or work performed on Saturday, preceding a holiday which falls on Monday, will be paid at the regular rate of pay for time worked, plus an additional \$4.00 per hour.
 - 1. Holidays referenced in Article 11, Section 1 that fall on a Saturday or Sunday will not be paid as a six day work week. In the event an employee works on said holiday, they will be paid their regular rate of pay for time worked, plus an additional \$4.00 per hour.
 - 2. Part time employees with less than 90 calendar days seniority, which are required to work on a holiday referenced in Article 11, Section 1, when all branch offices are closed will receive a \$100 lump sum bonus payment if they work 7.6 hours or more that day, in addition to pay for time worked and the additional \$4.00 per hour referenced in Section B or B(1) above, if applicable.

<u>Section 5:</u> Pension/401K: Employer will contribute 8% of part time employee compensation based on W-2 wages, including 401(k) and flexible spending contributions, to a mutually agreed upon defined contribution pension plan upon meeting the eligibility requirements of the plan. The Employer will match up to 2% of a participating bargaining unit employee's contribution to his/her 401(k) account.

In addition, the pension and 401(k) administration fee for active and retired employees will be paid by the Employer.

<u>Section 6:</u> Should the Employer determine a need to hire additional full time staff, the position will be awarded to the most senior employee if qualifications are relatively equal, provided the applicant meets the posted job skills. Relatively equal is defined as the status of the qualifications of two (2) or more candidates when there is no discernible difference in their qualifications that is likely to have any bearing on their ability to do the job. All Bargaining Unit employees that make application for positions, and meet the posted qualifications, shall be granted full and fair consideration before any external candidates are hired into the Bargaining Unit.

- A. Part time employees awarded full time positions will be given an introductory period not less than fifteen (15) working days, nor more than forty five (45) working days unless mutually agreed upon by the Employer and the union. PTO, holidays, bereavement, jury duty and leaves of absences will not be counted in the 15 to 45 day introductory period.
- B. A part time employee applying for a full time position, who is on a leave of absence at the time of such application, must return to work within fourteen (14) days of being awarded the position. Once awarded, the introductory period will begin when the employee returns to work.
- C. Part time employees awarded full time positions will be paid the part time PTO they have earned, up to and including the day before they begin full time, in accordance with Article 7, Section 3(A). Pro ration for the new full time classification shall be prorated based upon the number of days remaining in the calendar year. Payment will be made at the employee's current part time rate.
- D. Part time employees receiving disciplinary time off of **3 days** or more for any reason during the previous six (6) months shall not be eligible for such transfers regardless of seniority or qualifications.

<u>Section 7:</u> Any part time employee who is known to be ill or disabled, supported by satisfactory evidence will be granted sick leave, as outlined by the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) guidelines for the duration up to 6 months. Seniority of such employee shall accumulate during sick leave and shall be broken upon six months of leave of absence, unless a personal leave of absence is mutually agreed upon between the employee and employer. In compensable injury and/or legal occupational disease cases, sick leave shall be granted automatically and seniority shall accumulate for the full period of legal temporary disability.

- A. No sick leave shall begin prior to the date that the employee visits a doctor to treat the illness/injury that effectuates the leave.
- B. Employees absent from work due to illness or injury for less than five business days, will not be considered on a sick leave of absence, and will be charged with PTO.
- C. Personal time off (PTO) of **19** hours must be charged to an employee during the first week of a sick leave of absence.
- D. Employees who are hospitalized due to illness or injury, will be granted a sick leave of absence beginning the day of hospitalization through the date that their doctor's release up to six months, and will be charged with **19** PTO hours for those days. The employee may choose to use previously rolled over PTO days (Carry Over), **or** current PTO days, to satisfy the elimination

period

Section 8:

- A. Part time employees may work a maximum of 30.4 hours weekly unless additional time is required to finish a day's work. The Union reserves the right to grieve continuous violation of the 30.4 hour work limitation. Part time employees will not be scheduled for less than **19** hours weekly.
- B. During the introductory period, part time employees may be scheduled for 38 hours per week for up to four (4) weeks as a training period.
- C. The Employer shall have the right to schedule up to eight (8) hours per month for staff meetings and training sessions in addition to the weekly hours allowed in Article 7, **Section 8(A)**. Training time will be charged when meetings or other training are scheduled outside an individual employees scheduled workday.
- D. Part time employees shall receive 95% compensation for the daily hours scheduled in the event of an emergency closing of the credit union. Such emergency closing will be called at the discretion of the Employer.

<u>Section 9:</u> Part time employees shall join and maintain membership in the Union upon acquiring seniority subject to Article 1, Section 2.

<u>Section 10</u>: The credit union may work any part time employee in any department or job function of the credit union, and may transfer these employees between departments in its discretion, and as needed, on a daily basis.

In the event that a part time employee is replacing a full time employee who is on a leave of absence for a period in excess of 30 days, a part-time employee may be placed on temporary full time, subject to the requirements of Article 7, **Section 11(A)**. To further clarify, this will apply when a part-time employee fully assumes the duties of the absent employee. Such temporary full time assignment is not subject to the restrictions of Article 7, **Section 11(B)**.

Section 11: Temporary Full Time:

- A. In the event the Employer recognizes the need for temporary full time employees, the position will be offered to the most qualified part-time employee in the department, in line with seniority, and if not available within the department, to the most senior qualified part-time employee.
- B. At no time will there be more than six (6) part time employees working temporary full time. The aggregate of all employees working temporary full time shall not exceed a total of six hundred fifty (650) working days per calendar year.
- C. Employee(s) working temporary full time will receive the hourly wage referenced in **the Wage Scale** for the classification of work to be performed, provided that a minimum of 37 hours of

the scheduled workweek is worked.

Employees accepting temporary full time work will be given the option of canceling all scheduled time off greater than one (1) hour in a work week during the temporary reclassification, regardless of the cancellation notification period. If this scheduled time off is not cancelled, the next senior part time employee will be offered the temporary reclassification for that workweek, in seniority order.

- D. Temporary full time employee(s) will earn 7.6 additional PTO hours for each consecutive 30-day period of temporary full time worked, or a prorated percentage based on their hours worked as temporary full time during a 30 day period. Additionally, Personal Time Off (PTO) earned under Article 7, Section 3, will be paid on a pro-rated basis for the period immediately preceding temporary full time and also for the period immediately following the employees' return to part time status. Temporary full time employees shall be paid Holiday Pay as provided in Article 11. Temporary full time employees are not entitled to any other full time benefits.
- E. Article 7, Section 10 will continue to apply to employee(s) working temporary full time.

Section 12: Part Time Working Hours:

A. Employees who are scheduled to work on a given day shall receive break and lunch periods as follows (scheduled hours are calculated prior to deducting any breaks):

4.5 hours to 4 hours 59 minutes One paid 15 minute break

5 hours to 9.5 hoursOne paid 15 minute break & an unpaid 45 minute lunchMore than 9.5 hoursTwo paid 15 minute breaks & an unpaid 45 minute lunch

- 1. Breaks and lunch periods will be scheduled by the Employer in accordance with daily business needs.
- No employee shall be compelled to take the paid break before the employee has worked forty-five (45) minutes or after the employee has worked six and one quarter (6 1/4) hours. No employee shall be compelled to take the break one-half (1/2) hour before lunch period or one-half (1/2) hour after lunch period.
- 3. Employees entitled to one paid break and a lunch period, may schedule both together, or separately at the employee's option, with pre-notification to their supervisor.
- B. If an employee has a four and one-half (4.5) hour schedule, in lieu of taking a break the employee will be paid for fifteen (15) minutes.
- C. An employee called into work other than as scheduled shall be paid a minimum of 4 hours.
- D. In the event an employee does not balance within their scheduled work day, or within fifteen (15) minutes after serving their last member, whichever is later, the employee may continue to balance at straight time, with supervisory approval.
- E. No employee will be compelled to work six days a week, unless mutually agreed upon between management and the employee.

ARTICLE 8 – LAYOFF AND REHIRE

<u>Section 1:</u> In the event of layoff of seniority employees, the employee shall receive one (1) week notice or one (1) week of pay in lieu of notice.

Section 2: Employees will be laid off in inverse order of their seniority in accordance with the following:

- A. Co-op Employees
- B. Introductory Part Time Employees
- C. Seniority Part Time Employees
- D. Introductory Full Time Employees
- E. Seniority Full Time Employees
- F. Full and Part Time Employees not listed below
 - 1. Bookkeeper
 - a. Seniority permitting and qualified to do the job another employee may displace one of these.

<u>Section 3</u>: Employees shall be recalled to work in order of their seniority (reverse order of the layoff).

<u>Section 4:</u> Full time employees shall not be required to accept temporary or part time work to retain their seniority in reduction of force. Part time employees shall not be required to accept temporary work to retain their seniority in reduction in force.

<u>Section 5</u>: If an employee is recalled from layoff into a different position and/or department from their pre-layoff status, or if they are otherwise involuntarily displaced from their position and/or department resulting from a layoff in the Bargaining Unit, they shall be returned to such position and/or department in seniority order as openings occur.

<u>Section 6:</u> In the event of a layoff of seniority full time employees, the highest seniority full time employee that applies will be laid-off, provided the Employer determines the remaining employees are capable of performing the work. The invert layoff option may be limited to one higher seniority employee per layoff. At the end of thirty (30) days, and each thirty (30) days thereafter, a review of the layoff will be made to determine if the longer seniority employee will continue on layoff. At that time the lowest seniority employee may be laid off.

ARTICLE 9 – TRANSFERS

<u>Section 1:</u> When the Employer determines that a full time job vacancy is available for bidding, **the employer** will post notices via the **payroll** site. Full time **employees**, part time employees, **and external applicants** may apply. Employees must file an application with the Employer within **seven (7)** working days of the posted notice. **The position will be awarded to the most qualified candidate.**

<u>Section 2:</u> When multiple applications are filed for a posted job vacancy, the position will be awarded to the most senior bidder, if qualifications are relatively equal, provided the applicant meets the posted job skills. Relatively equal is defined as the status of the qualifications of two (2) or more candidates when there is no discernible difference in their qualifications that is likely to have any bearing on their ability to do the job. All Bargaining Unit employees that make application for positions, and meet the posted qualifications, shall be granted full and fair consideration before any external candidates are hired into the Bargaining Unit.

Employees receiving disciplinary time off of **three (3) days** or more for any reason during the previous six (6) months shall not be eligible for such transfers regardless of seniority or qualifications.

<u>Section 3:</u> After accepting a job vacancy, a full time employee cannot apply for another change in his/her position for at least six (6) months, unless it is a higher paying job or by mutual agreement.

<u>Section 4:</u> If an opening occurs, a full time employee on leave of absence of thirty (30) days or less must be contacted by phone or certified letter of the opening.

<u>Section 5:</u> A full time employee who is awarded a job vacancy shall be given a trial period of not less than fifteen (15) days, nor more than ninety (90) working days, unless mutually agreed upon by the Employer and the Union in writing. In the event the Employer determines that the employee fails to qualify for the job, the employee shall be returned to their classification within the department with no loss of seniority, nor shall the failure to qualify be considered as a negative factor for subsequent job openings.

<u>Section 6:</u> Full Time employees transferring to Part Time status will accrue personal time off (PTO) based upon the time off calendar in Article 7: Section 3. Furthermore, all benefits tied to full time status would be forfeited effective employee's transfer date back to part time status. Medical exceptions may be made based on ACA compliance.

<u>Section 7:</u> If the Employer determines the need to downsize a department for reasons not constituting a layoff, the lowest seniority person in that department shall be transferred to the department the Employer deems necessary, unless a higher seniority employee volunteers to transfer. Within two (2) weeks of displacement, the employee must file an application with the Human Resource Department requesting to be returned to that position if an opening should occur within one (1) year.

ARTICLE 10 – FULL TIME WORKING HOURS

<u>Section 1:</u> All overtime work will be equalized between seniority employees. Overtime is defined as time worked in excess of 38 hours in a workweek. Premium pay for overtime work shall only be paid in accordance with Section 13 of this Article. Introductory employees may perform work during regular hours, but will only work overtime when all employees in their department are working. Each department listed below will be a separate equalization of hours group:

Facilities Main Teller Department Collection Department Loan Department Information Technology Department Contact Center Department Compliance Department Card Services/ACH Accounting Department Operations Department Mortgage Department Staff of Each Individual Branch Office

<u>Section 2:</u> Credit Union will equalize overtime among employees in the equalization group who are capable of performing the overtime assignment without additional training. The employee with the least amount of hours shall be offered the work first. Employees who accept overtime, or refuse overtime, will be charged for the time.

<u>Section 3:</u> Employees may decline the overtime assignment in order of equalization of hours. If no one accepts the assignment, the least senior employees who are capable of performing it will have to accept the overtime assignment. If necessary, an entire equalization group may be required to work overtime.

- A. If an employees' job requires them to work overtime, employees assigned to jobs may be required to work the overtime to complete the day's transactions.
- B. The Employer shall notify employees of overtime work twenty four (24) hours in advance of overtime, whenever possible.
- C. All absences of less than thirty (30) days shall be charged with the actual hours they could have worked during the period of absence.
- D. A new hire, upon acquiring seniority, or an employee returning from a layoff, leave of absence or other absence of thirty (30) days or more, shall be given the average hours of the group, upon return to work, for the purpose of equalization of hours.
- E. For purposes of equalization of overtime, employees will be charged one paid hour for each hour worked or refused.
- F. Employees transferred from one equalization of hours group to another shall take the average hours of the group to which they are transferred.

<u>Section 4:</u> The standard workday shall be up to 9.5 hours for a four (4) or five (5) day workweek. Overtime outside the standard workweek shall be paid according to Section 13.

No employee shall be compelled to take any part of such continuous hour for lunch before the employee has worked one hour and fifty-five minutes of their work day or after the employee has worked six (6) hours of their work day.

Section 5: The standard workweek shall be thirty eight (38) hours.

<u>Section 6:</u> An accounting of accumulated over-time and regular hours shall be made available on the credit union intranet site at all times.

<u>Section 7:</u> The employee's starting time shall be fixed at the Employer's discretion to efficiently operate the credit union as long as the decisions made by the Employer reflect sound business practices and do not reflect discrimination or prejudice. The designated operating officials shall be the sole judges of what constitutes proper protection of the credit union's interest, to protect its security and solvency, and to best protect the interest of the member.

<u>Section 8:</u> Employees scheduled for an afternoon shift shall receive a shift premium of \$0.50 per hour. Anyone working at least one-half of their regular hour day after 5:20 pm shall receive the shift premium.

Section 9:

A. Employees who are scheduled to work on a given day shall receive break and lunch periods as follows (scheduled hours are calculated prior to deducting any breaks):

4.5 hours to 4 hours 59 minutes One paid 15 minute break

- 5 hours to 9.5 hoursOne paid 15 minute break & an unpaid 45 minute lunchMore than 9.5 hoursTwo paid 15 minute breaks & an unpaid 45 minute lunch
- B. Employees entitled to one paid break and a lunch period, may schedule both together, or separately at the employees' option, with pre-notification to their supervisor.
- C. Breaks and lunch periods will be scheduled by the Employer in accordance with daily business needs.
- D. No employee shall be compelled to take the paid break before the employee has worked fortyfive (45) minutes or after the employee has worked six and one quarter (6 1/4) hours. No employee shall be compelled to take the break one-half (1/2) hour before lunch period or onehalf (1/2) hour after lunch period.
- E. If an employee has a four and one-half (4.5) hour schedule, in lieu of taking a break the employee will be paid for 15 minutes.

Section 10: An employee called into work other than as scheduled shall be paid a minimum of 4 hours.

<u>Section 11:</u> All work performed on Sunday shall be paid at double (2) times the regular rate of pay.

<u>Section 12:</u> All work performed on the Holidays recognized by this Agreement shall be paid overtime (1½ times employee's regular rate) for hours worked that day, in addition to holiday pay. The exception is New Year's Day, Memorial Day, July 4th, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day, which shall be paid at two (2) times the regular rate of pay for time worked, in addition to holiday pay.

A. Full time employees that work on a holiday referenced in Article 11, Section 1, except Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve, may elect to receive an additional 7.6 hours paid day off, in lieu of holiday pay. Time off, in lieu of pay, will be scheduled at the mutual agreement of the employee and their supervisor.

B. Work to be performed on a holiday, referenced in Article 11, Section 1 will be scheduled among employees capable of performing the work to be assigned without additional training in the sole discretion of the Employer, on a voluntary basis whenever possible. Seniority will be the deciding factor should more than one qualified employee volunteer for the holiday hours to be worked and the preference of which holiday to be worked. Once a high seniority employee has volunteered to work a holiday, preference will then be given to the next senior employee capable of doing the work to be assigned, in seniority order. If no employee capable of doing the work, or the work will be assigned to the lowest senior employee capable of doing the work. Once a low seniority employee has been required to work a holiday, the holiday will be assigned to the next lowest seniority employee capable of performing the work to be assigned. No employee may be required to work more than one holiday per calendar year, unless there are no other qualified employees capable of doing the work to be assigned. The process above renews each January 1st.

An employee may not volunteer to work on a holiday in which they have been approved for vacation within the same workweek.

<u>Section 13:</u> All work performed in excess of 38 hours a week shall be paid at the rate of one and onehalf (1 ½) times the employee's regular rate of pay. Bereavement days and emergency closings will be considered time worked when calculating overtime.

<u>Section 14:</u> The Employer shall have the right to schedule up to eight (8) hours per month at straight time for staff meetings and training sessions. Training time will be charged when meetings or other training are scheduled outside an individual employees scheduled workday.

<u>Section 15:</u> In the event an employee does not balance within their scheduled work day, or within fifteen (15) minutes after serving their last member, whichever is later, the employee may continue to balance at straight time, with supervisory approval.

<u>Section 16:</u> Full time employees shall receive 95% compensation, plus overtime, for the daily hours scheduled in the event of an emergency closing of the credit union. Such emergency closing shall be called at the discretion of the Employer.

ARTICLE 11 – HOLIDAY PAY

<u>Section 1:</u> Full time employees will be paid one (1) full day pay for each of the following holidays, provided they work the full scheduled work days immediately before and immediately after the holiday.

December 31st **(1/2 day)** January 1st, or January 2nd if January 1st falls on Sunday Martin Luther King, Jr. Day President's Day Memorial Day Juneteenth July 4th or July 5th if July 4th falls on Sunday Labor Day Indigenous People's Day Veteran's Day Thanksgiving Day December 24th **(1/2 day)** December 25th or December 26th if December 25th falls on Sunday

- A. Employees absent a full or partial day, due to illness on the scheduled day before or after a holiday will receive holiday pay if they provide the credit union with a doctors' certification or other valid proof of illness. If an employee is scheduled to work on the holiday and calls in on the holiday, they will not be paid holiday pay.
- B. Employees on a pre-approved vacation, jury duty, bereavement, or scheduled PTO, on the day before or after a holiday will receive holiday pay. Employees tardy on the day before or after the holiday may receive holiday pay, at the Employer discretion.
- C. Employees that begin a sick leave of absence within the week prior to the holiday or the week in which the holiday occurs, will receive holiday pay if they return to work the day following the holiday and have provided the credit union with doctor's certification to return to work.
- D. Employees returning from sick leave will not receive holiday pay if their doctor returns them to work on the holiday.
- E. Work performed on Saturday, following a holiday which falls on Friday, or work performed on Saturday, preceding a holiday which falls on Monday, will be paid overtime (1 ½ times employee's regular rate) for hours worked that day, as outlined in **Wage Scale**.
- F. Holidays referenced in Article 11, Section 1 that fall on a Saturday or Sunday will not be paid as a six day work week. In the event an employee works on said holiday, they will be paid according to Article 10, Section 12.
- G. If an employee is required to work on a holiday when all branch offices are closed, they will receive a \$100 lump sum bonus payment if they work 7.6 hours or more that day, in addition to pay for time worked and holiday pay, as applicable.

ARTICLE 12 – BEREAVEMENT PAY

<u>Section 1:</u> All employees shall be granted three (3) days of absence, upon notification to Employer, from work, with pay for bereavement period in the event of a death in an employee's immediate family defined as: brother, sister, grandparents, grandchild, half-brother, half-sister, step-parents, step brother, step sister, parents of current spouse, grandparents of current spouse, **son in law, daughter in law**, step parents of current spouse. If an employee is on a scheduled vacation when a death in the immediate family occurs, three days of absence with pay for bereavement period will be granted upon notification to Human Resources.

Parents of current spouse include parents of an employees' deceased spouse, within one year of the spouse's date of death, provided the employee and deceased spouse were married for at least 10 years and the employee has not remarried.

<u>Section 2:</u> All employees will be granted five (5) days of absence from work, with pay, for bereavement period in the event of a death of a spouse **(including common law spouse)**, child, or step-child.

<u>Section 3:</u> All employees will be granted four (4) days of absence from work, with pay, for the death of an employee's mother or father.

Section 4: Part time employees will be paid for scheduled hours of their scheduled days only.

<u>Section 5:</u> Bereavement days must be used immediately following the death unless special circumstances exist. At the sole discretion of the Employer, should such circumstances deem operationally necessary, the employee may be paid for unused bereavement days.

ARTICLE 13 – JURY DUTY

<u>Section 1:</u> The Employer agrees to pay the difference between all employee wages and what they receive in pay for jury duty.

Section 2: Part time employees will be paid for scheduled hours of their scheduled days only.

<u>Section 3:</u> Employees scheduled for jury duty must return to work within thirty (30) minutes of dismissal to qualify for reimbursement of lost wages. This time will be extended to one and one-half hour if the employee has not received a lunch break as part of their jury duty service.

ARTICLE 14 – RATE OF PAY

<u>Section 1:</u> The Employer agrees to compensate each employee at the rate of pay referenced in **Wage** Scale, based on hire date.

<u>Section 2:</u> When it becomes necessary to establish further job classifications, the wage rates therefore, shall be negotiated between the Employer and the Union.

<u>Section 3:</u> The Employer agrees to update employee wage rates referenced in the Wage Scale effective on the contract ratification date of July 3, 2023. Furthermore, wage increases for all union employees will be implemented again, according to the Wage Scale, on May 6, 2024 and then again on May 5, 2025.

<u>Section 4:</u> Employees that are rehired within (1) one year of separation or less may retain the same wage scale as when they left the company up to the year 2 scale as outlined in the Wage Scale of this agreement. Upon such rehire, no employee shall exceed their previous pay scale. The employee shall additionally be subject to a reduced introductory period of thirty (30) calendar days.

<u>Section 5:</u> Employer has the right to hire new full time employees at the appropriate pay rate within the range specified in 0 year, of the Wage Scale, based on relevant years of similar work experience. Human Resources reserves the right to increase the 0 year pay rate while the new hire is in the 0 year wage scale.

ARTICLE 15 – PENSION/401K FOR FULL TIME EMPLOYEES

<u>Section 1:</u> The Employer will contribute 8% of employee's compensation based on W-2 wages, including 401(k) and flexible spending contributions, to a mutually agreed upon defined contribution pension plan, upon the employee meeting the eligibility requirements of the plan. The employer will match up to 2% of a participating bargaining unit employee's contribution to his/her 401(k) account.

<u>Section 2:</u> The Employer agrees to pay the administration cost of the pension and 401(k) pension plans for active and retired employees. Employee record keeping fees will be charged against the individual employees retirement investment account.

ARTICLE 16 – RETIREE BENEFITS

<u>Section 1:</u> The Employer shall pay up to \$200.00 per month of health insurance premiums for full time employees who retire, provided they are 55 years of age and have 30 years of service prior to retirement. Employee must be enrolled in the Employer health insurance program at the time of retirement and enrollment must be continuous thereafter in order to maintain eligibility. Retirees must apply for Medicare Part B benefits as soon as available. Once Medicare Part B benefits become available, the Employer will maintain supplemental health insurance coverage subject to a \$200.00 maximum premium per month, per retired employee. The current plan available for Medicare eligible retirees is Blue Care Network Medicare Advantage coverage with \$15/\$50 prescription and \$30.00 office co-pay. The Employer reserves the right to change insurance carriers as long as the benefit is comparable to the current plan and the prescription co-pay does not exceed \$15/\$50 and the office co-pay does not exceed \$30.00 per visit. Retired employees, prior to Medicare eligibility, may choose health insurance coverage as provided in Article 18, Section 1, except that the Employer will not be responsible for dependent coverage.

A. The Employer shall pay health insurance premiums for full time employees whose full time seniority date is prior to March 23, 1998 who retire provided they are 62 years of age or have thirty (30) years of service prior to retirement. If they do not have thirty (30) years of service, but are 62 years old they must have at least fifteen (15) years of service. Section 1 shall apply except as provided in this section.

<u>Section 2:</u> Retirees may purchase health insurance coverage for their spouse at group rates. They may also purchase vision and dental benefits for themselves and their spouse at group rates, if allowed by the carrier and there are enough interested to fulfill required quotas.

<u>Section 3:</u> Qualified retired employees, as outlined above in Article 16, Section, Section 1-A, **or Section 4** are eligible to receive the following benefits, equivalent to an active employee:

- A. Loan Rate Reduction for Secured Loans
- B. Certificate Rate Increase
- C. \$50 Yearly Fee Forgiveness
- D. Free Benefits Plus
- E. Free Checks

<u>Section 4:</u> For Legacy Wanigas Credit Union Employees only. This section is grandfathered in until the end of this contract on May 31, 2026.

A. Employees who have more than ten years of service as of November 1, 1999, shall upon completing 30 years of service with Wanigas Credit Union and upon reaching the age of 55 shall be eligible for Full Family Health Insurance. The Credit Union will pay the current employer portion of the active group medical plan the employee is enrolled in at the time. Upon reaching the age 65, the Credit Union will pay 97% of the employee's Medicare Supplemental Policy.

A spouse or other dependent cannot be added after the qualified employee retires. Qualified retirees must have elected coverage at the last open enrollment prior to retirement to participate in the health care plan and the qualifying dependents for retirement coverage. Qualified retirees are responsible to be covered with the Credit Union's insurance prior to retirement to ensure the ability to receive qualified retiree benefits. Subject to the terms of the insurance company, the Employer will allow a qualified retiree to pay the additional premium for a nonqualified spouse or dependent.

- B. Employees who have less than ten years of service as of November 1, 1999, shall upon completing 30 years of service with Wanigas Credit Union and upon reaching the age of 55 shall be eligible for Single Subscriber Health Insurance. The Credit Union will pay the current employer portion of the active group medical plan the employee is enrolled in at the time. Upon reaching the age 65, the Credit Union will pay 97% of the employee's Medicare Supplemental Policy.
- C. The retirement health care benefit ceases upon the passing of the qualifying union retiree.
- D. Any employee who accepted a retirement health care opt out payment are ineligible for the Legacy Wanigas retirement benefit.

ARTICLE 17 – PERSONAL TIME OFF FOR FULL TIME EMPLOYEES

Section 1: Accrual

Full Time PTO (7.6 hour increments)						
Seniority (Years)	Paid Time Off Paid Time O (Days) (Hours)					
Starting Year	12	91.2				
After Year 1	17	129.2				
2 Years	22	167.2				
3 Years	24	182.4				
5 Years	27	205.2				
11 Years	28	212.8				
15 Years	30	228				
20 Years	33	250.8				
26 Years	34	258.4				

A. Full Time Employees will accrue PTO at the beginning of the calendar year based upon this following schedule:

- B. During employee's first year of employment, starting PTO will be pro-rated based upon the number of days remaining in the calendar year. (Ex: An employee starting on September 20th would receive 4.8 days PTO for their starting year 103 days/365 days = 0.282 x 12 days = 3.38 days x 7.6 hours = 25.69 starting hours)
- C. Employees accrue PTO evenly amongst each calendar day they are an active employee. PTO is not accrued when on leave of absence or upon termination of employment.

<u>Section 2: Use of PTO -</u> PTO may be used for vacation, personal time, sick time, or other approved absences. Employees must request scheduled PTO at least 24 hours in advance, and it is subject to approval by their supervisor. PTO can be used in any increment to satisfy the weekly standard hour requirements (38 hours for FT).

<u>Section 3: Payment</u> - Upon termination of employment or resignation (with a two-week notice satisfied), employees will be paid for any unused PTO that has been accrued. Employees will not be paid out any unused paid time at the end of each calendar year, but may choose to carry up to five unused days over.

<u>Section 4: Carryover -</u> Employees may carry over a maximum of 5 days of unused Paid Time Off into the next calendar year to be used for any time off purpose (Personal time, leave elimination period, etc.) Carry over days cannot compound year-over-year.

<u>Section 5: PTO Bidding</u> - Seniority shall be the governing factor for preference on dates for **PTO** by the employee, provided they apply before **January 15**th. The allotted number of employees allowed **PTO** per department will be as follows:

Accounting	.1 employee
Card Services/ACH	1 employee
Contact Center	2 employees
Collections	.1 employee
Compliance	.1 employee
Facilities	.1 employee
Information Technology	1 employee
Consumer Lending	2 employees
Mortgages	1 employee
Operations	.2 employees
Branch Office Staff Above 10	2 employees
Branch Office Staff Below 10	.1 employee

- A. Compensation for each day of assigned PTO will be straight time. If a holiday falls within the time off period, it will not be considered a PTO day.
- B. PTO should be scheduled as far as possible in advance for the benefit of both the employees and the Credit Union. One week shall take precedence over lesser time requests. The final determination regarding the scheduling of time off must rest with Management. When a PTO schedule has been determined, it will be posted in a conspicuous place and considered irrevocable without the consent of Management and other employees whose time off plans may be affected by the change. PTO shall be scheduled by seniority in each department by means of a signup sheet.
- C. The signup period shall be November 15th through January 15th for time off for the following calendar year. The most senior individual in the department shall select first, followed by the next most senior, etc. until all employees have had the option to schedule all of their available time off. Employees may schedule up to twenty (20) days per round with requests for five (5) consecutive days being awarded over requests for fewer days. Time off approvals shall be given within five (5) working days of the conclusion of each round.
- D. **PTO not scheduled during the signup period, shall be on a first-come, first-served basis.**
 - Discretionary PTO: Should more than the allotted number of full time employee's request time off than can be approved at the Employer's discretion, the employee(s) shall be granted the time off in seniority order, provided they apply before January 15th.

Discretionary **PTO** is subject to a waiting period, which ends 30 days prior to the requested **time** off date. The request must be resubmitted at the end of the waiting period.

2. The employee should schedule their time off annually, prior to January 15th to exercise

seniority rights. Only **time off** scheduled prior to January 15th will qualify for seniority preference.

3. The time allotted for each employee in the department to hold the vacation bidding calendar is based upon the number of employees in the department compared to the number of days allotted for bidding (including weekend days, rounded down).

days each employee holds calendar = <u>62 days (Nov 15 – Jan 15)</u> # Employees in Department

- E. Notice of layoff or discharge, except for misappropriation of funds, may not be given during the **time off** period. However, the Employer shall not be required to recall an employee having higher seniority than the employee returning from **time off** during the period when the employee returning from PTO is given notice of the layoff or discharge.
- F. In the event of the death of an employee, payment of accrued time off pay as provided shall be made to the legal heirs of their estate.
- G. It is required that each full time employee must take at least five (5) consecutive days off per seniority year, beginning their first full calendar year following date of hire. Consecutive days off may consist of PTO or Holiday.
- H. Once the time off schedule has been made, one (1) weeks' notice has to be given of cancellation, or the employee will be forced to take the PTO days or be charged with them. Cancellations of a full week only will be posted.
- During the period between May 15th and September 15th and the week of Thanksgiving, Christmas and the week of New Year's, full PTO weeks will take preference over partial weeks. A partial week will be permitted as long as that week is not filled up with a full week of time off.
- J. During the workweeks that include May 15th through September 15th, Thanksgiving, and Christmas through New Year's Day, cancellation of time off can only be made with thirty (30) days prior notice, or the employee will be required to take the PTO. All canceled time off must be re-posted for bid and use by other employees.

ARTICLE 18 – INSURANCE

<u>Section 1:</u> The Employer shall pay a portion of the premium for health insurance comparable to the plans referenced below for full time employees and their dependents, through the end of the calendar year in which they turn **26** years of age unless legally disabled, subject to the limitations stated in Section 4. The Employer reserves the right to change insurance carriers as long as the benefit is comparable to the below referenced plans.

<u>Base Plan:</u> BCN Plan Option 1 with \$15/\$50 prescription co-pay and \$25 office co-pay.
This plan includes a \$1,500/\$3,000 deductible and \$2,000/\$4,000 out of pocket maximum.
BCN Plan Option 2, with \$15/\$50 prescription co-pay and \$30 office co-pay.
This plan includes a \$250/\$500 deductible and \$1,250/\$2,500 out of pocket maximum.
BCN Plan Option 3, with \$15/\$50 prescription co-pay and \$30 office co-pay.
This plan includes \$0 deductible and \$6,350/\$12,700 out of pocket maximum.
BCN Plan Option 4, HMO HSA \$2,000 deductible and \$4,000/\$8,000 out of pocket maximum.

The Credit Union agrees to pay the full cost of the "Base Plan" monthly premium for full time employee health care subject to the cost outline in Section 6.

Employees are responsible for the additional cost of each plan. Employee premium contributions will be deducted from the employee's paycheck weekly on a pre-tax basis.

<u>Section 2:</u> The Employer shall pay the full premium for dental insurance, comparable to the current plan, for all full time employees, their spouse, and their dependents for the duration as required by law, subject to the limitations stated in Section 4.

<u>Section 3:</u> The Employer shall pay the full premium for vision care insurance, for all full time employees, their spouse, and their dependents for the duration as required by law subject to the limitations stated in Section 4.

<u>Section 4:</u> In the event an employee has any individual and/or dependent health, dental or vision coverage available through their spouse, then the employee must make a choice between staying with that program or coming under the credit union plan. No employee, spouse, or dependent shall have dual coverage under a credit union plan and another plan. If the employee elects the credit union's plan, the employee must provide a statement in writing to the credit union from the administrator of the spouse(s) plan stating that the employee (and, for family coverage, their spouse or dependents) has discontinued coverage. Should an employee, spouse or dependent be unable to remove themselves from coverage under another plan, they shall not be eligible for coverage under a credit union medical, dental or vision insurance plan.

<u>Section 5:</u> The Employer agrees to pay the full premium for sickness and accident insurance, to provide sixty percent (60%) of the weekly salary coverage for each full time employee. The Employer agrees to pay the full premium for long-term disability coverage for each full time employee. In addition, the Employer agrees to pay the full premium for a life insurance policy paying benefits of two times the employees' salary upon their death.

<u>Section 6:</u> Employer and Union will develop a committee to review annual insurance increases to maintain good coverage within reasonable cost structures. Employer will sustain an increase of **9%**

during each year of the insurance contract, which includes federal fees and taxes assessed as part of the Affordable Health Care Act. In the event the plan cost is greater than the above mentioned percentages in any year, the employees will absorb the additional cost.

Section 7:

- A. The Employer agrees to pay premiums on employees on sick leave for a period of six (6) months (current plus 5).
- B. The Employer agrees to pay premiums for employees on Infant Care Leave for a period of four (4) months.
- C. The Employer agrees to pay premiums on employees who are laid off for a period of two (2) months (current plus 1).
- D. The Employer agrees to pay premiums on employees on leave of absence for **education and** personal reasons through the last day worked prior to the leave.

ARTICLE 19 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE

<u>Section 1: General Leaves of Absences-</u> A leave of absence may be granted for personal reasons for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days upon application of the employee to the Employer. Seniority shall accumulate during such leave. No employee shall be entitled to more than one such leave in any one year.

<u>Section 2: Educational Leaves of Absences-</u>Educational leave may be granted for one year provided an employee is taking a full class schedule. Seniority shall not accumulate during the leave.

<u>Section 3: Sick Leaves of Absence -</u> Any full time employee who is known to be ill or disabled, supported by satisfactory doctor certification will be granted sick leave for the duration of the illness or disability. Seniority of such employee shall accumulate during sick leave and shall be broken figured from the date the sick leave started, and continue until the earliest date provided in either Article 6, Section 3 (F) or Article 6, Section 3 (G).

- A. No sick leave shall begin prior to the date that the employee visits a doctor to treat the illness/injury that effectuates the leave.
- B. Employees absent from work due to illness or injury for five business days or less will not be considered on a sick leave of absence, and will be charged with time off. The employee may choose to use previously rolled over PTO days (Carry Over) **or** current PTO days, to satisfy the elimination period.
- C. The elimination period will consist of a 7 calendar day waiting period for any reason, subject to the insurance carrier plan document.
- D. In the event an employee received sickness and/or disability insurance for which the Employer has paid the premiums, or contributed thereto, time so compensated shall not be considered as personal time off (PTO), nor shall such time be otherwise compensated by the Employer.
- E. Employees returning to work from an extended sick leave of one year or more shall be given work, if available, in line with seniority they are capable of doing, taking into consideration the state of their health and job requirements.
- F. In compensable injury and/or legal occupational disease cases, sick leave shall be granted automatically and seniority shall accumulate for the full period of legal temporary disability.
- G. The disability insurance carrier has the ultimate authority to determine the eligibility of a sick leave as it is defined by the insurance carrier plan document.
- H. The employer reserves the right to send an employee that is on a disability/leave of absence to an IME (Independent Medical Exam) of the employer's choice for a second opinion. The employer also reserves the right to conduct at-home visits during the time of disability/leave of absence, as well as hire a private investigator at the employer's expense.

<u>Section 4: Full Time - Personal Time Off (PTO)-</u> **Employees are granted Personal Time Off (PTO) as indicated in Article 17, Section 1**. Only 9 of these days (68.4 hours) are allowed to be used as call-in (unscheduled) days.

The Employer must be reimbursed if an employee fails to earn all PTO hours for which payment has

been made.

- A. PTO accounting will be in 1/100th hour increments.
- B. PTO must be used to compensate an employee for the unpaid portion of a sick leave of absence.
- C. Employees may carry over a maximum of 5 days of unused Paid Time Off into the next calendar year to be used for any time off purpose (Personal time, leave elimination period, etc.) Carry over days cannot compound year-over-year. Decision on carry over must be communicated to the Human Resource Department no later than November 15th
- D. Employees may make-up up to two (2) hours of preauthorized absences per work week, at the option of the Employer. Such absences may be made up before or after the employees regularly scheduled work day or during lunch or break times, at the mutual agreement of the employee and the Employer.
- E. Employees tardy at the beginning of the shift or returning from lunch, will automatically receive an unexcused tardy regardless of the reason and will not receive PTO payment for the first 30 minutes or less or be allowed to make up time. Employees will receive an unexcused tardy if they are more than 30 minutes late, however, beyond the 30 minutes, they will be compensated with PTO. They will not be allowed to make up any time that is not pre-approved a full business day in advance.
- F. One (1) weeks' notice shall be given to the Employer, whenever possible, of the personal time off request, and is subject to the Employer's approval.
- G. Once PTO has been approved, it can only be changed or canceled upon mutual agreement.
- H. Upon termination of employment or resignation (with a two-week notice satisfied), employees will be paid for any unused PTO that has been accrued.

<u>Section 5: Leave of Absence for Union Activity-</u> An employee elected to a permanent office in, or as a delegate to any labor activity necessitating a leave of absence shall be granted such leave, for up to one (1) year, when requested by OPEIU Local **459** in writing.

A. One of the following will be excused from work at one time with as much advance notice as possible:

President of Local **459** Vice President of Local **459** Steward or Bargaining Committee member of Financial Plus CU Local **459**

- B. The Union will be allowed to excuse no more than two (2) stewards and/or Bargaining Committee members in addition to the grievant and witnesses needed for an arbitration hearing, when the Employer is notified in writing at least three (3) days in advance by Local **459**.
- C. In the event that bargaining unit employees take the leaves of absence specified in this section, the Employer shall have the right to schedule part time employees to work the hours of those absent, even if such hours cause the part time employees to exceed the 30.4 hour maximum weekly hour limit.

<u>Section 6: Infant Care Leave-</u> All employees who become pregnant shall be entitled to an infant care leave. Seniority shall accumulate during such leave.

- A. The Employer must be notified as soon as practical of delivery or termination of pregnancy. The employee shall notify the Employer five (5) days prior to return to work. The employee will be returned to the same classification within the department with their accumulated seniority.
- B. An infant care leave will be granted upon request. The infant care leave must be contiguous to the disability leave and will not exceed four (4) months including the disability portion of the leave.

<u>Section 7: Adoptive Care Leave-</u> All employees who legally adopt a child will be granted, upon request, an adoptive infant care leave contiguous with the adoption. Such leaves shall not exceed four (4) months. Seniority shall accumulate during such leave of absence. The Employer agrees to pay the premium on all insurance for all employees on such leave through the last day worked prior to the leave. An employee requesting an adoptive care leave must use all accrued **PTO** time during the leave, and said leave shall otherwise be unpaid.

<u>Section 8: General Leave Provisions-</u> All of the above leaves of absence are granted, subject to the following conditions:

- A. All leaves must be granted in writing, by the Employer, with one copy to be given to the Employer, one to the Steward and one to the employee involved.
- B. Any employee on leave may return to work in line with their seniority upon expiration date of the leave or before provided not less than five (5) working days' notice is given to the Employer.
- C. In no case shall a leave of absence be held valid if an employee accepts work from another Employer during the leave, unless mutually agreed upon between the Employer and the employee before such leave starts.
- D. Any full time employee who has been granted a leave of absence less than one (1) year shall be returned to their classification within the department at the current rate of pay on return to work. Any employee who performed the job of an employee on leave shall be returned to their previous job, etc.
- E. Any employee that elects not to return from a leave of absence must provide a minimum of two (2) weeks notification to qualify for any portion of accrued PTO payment.

ARTICLE 20 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

<u>Section 1:</u> Salary personnel may perform job functions or work customarily performed by members of the bargaining unit whenever, in the discretion of the Employer, such work is necessary for the prompt and efficient servicing of members. The foregoing shall only apply, however, where the Employer acts in good faith and on the basis of legitimate business needs. Regular full time and part time employees shall not be laid off as a result. The Employer shall not take existing regular full time positions, which have customarily been occupied by bargaining unit members and unilaterally designate them as salaried positions.

<u>Section 2:</u> In the event of an administration change in offices of the Employer, the status of all employees shall be governed by this Agreement.

<u>Section 3:</u> This Agreement shall include any employee on any of the leave of absences provided herein as of this date.

<u>Section 4:</u> Upon death of an employee, accrued PTO will be paid to the designated party.

<u>Section 5:</u> An employee who resigns will not be entitled to any portion of accrued PTO payment unless a two (2) week notification period has been provided to the Employer.

<u>Section 6:</u> Employees shall keep the business of the credit union and its members strictly confidential. Failing to do so is cause for immediate discharge.

<u>Section 7:</u> Employees shall not engage directly or indirectly in any political activities relative to election of officers of this credit union.

<u>Section 8:</u> Employees shall notify the Employer when they are absent except in case of extreme emergency.

Any apparent abuse of sick leave by an employee shall be grounds for the Employer to require an additional doctor's certification or other valid proof of illness. This will be a doctor chosen by the credit union, at the expense of the credit union.

<u>Section 9:</u> The Employer has the right to test employees, based on reasonable suspicion for illegal drug or alcohol use.

<u>Section 10:</u> The union and Employer agree that both desire uninterrupted credit union operations. During the life of this Agreement, the union shall not authorize, sanction, encourage, ratify, acquiesce in, condone or permit any of its members to take part in, nor shall any member of the union take part in, any strike, slow down or any other interference of operations of the Employer. The union, its officers, agents and representatives, and each of them, agree to exercise whatever steps are necessary and proper to end such improper activity. Nor shall the Employer engage in any lock out of unit employees.

<u>Section 11:</u> If an hourly rated employee elects to accept a salary position, that employee may return to their previous seniority group within thirty (30) working days with no loss of seniority and benefits.

- A. If a salary employee chooses to stay in a salary position and is employed as such, past the thirty (30) working days, they will freeze their hourly seniority.
- B. At the sole discretion of the Employer, a salary seniority employee may be allowed to return to an hourly rated position, after being employed in a salary position, past the thirty (30) working days stated. If granted, they will return to their previous seniority group, and will take the place of the lowest seniority employee, and frozen seniority will resume.

<u>Section 12:</u> The Employer agrees to provide reasonable working conditions for the employee. It will be the policy to maintain a high standard of sanitary, lighting and healthful working conditions.

<u>Section 13:</u> It shall be the duty of the employee to keep the Employer notified of their proper address and telephone number at all times.

7/3/2023							
		Group	А	Grou	ир В	Gro	up C
	Starting						
2023	0 year	Range	\$18.00-\$20.00	\$22	.00-\$24.00	\$24	.00-\$26.00
2022	1 year	\$	20.40	\$	24.48	\$	26.26
2021	2 years	\$	21.01	\$	24.97	\$	26.52
2020-2018	3 years - 5 years	\$	21.64	\$	25.47	\$	26.79
2017-2013	6 years - 10 years	\$	22.29	\$	25.98	\$	27.06
2012-2008	11 years - 15 years	\$	22.29	\$	26.50	\$	27.33
2007-2003	16 years - 20 years	\$	22.29	\$	27.03	\$	27.60
2002 +	21 years +	\$	22.29	\$	27.57	\$	27.88

WAGE SCALE

5/6/2024 (4 %)							
		Group	А	Gro	ир В	Gro	up C
	Starting						
2024	0 year	Range	\$18.00-\$20.00	\$22	.00-\$24.00	\$24.	.00-\$26.00
2023	1 year	\$	21.22	\$	25.46	\$	27.31
2022	2 years	\$	21.85	\$	25.97	\$	27.58
2021-2019	3 years - 5 years	\$	22.51	\$	26.49	\$	27.86
2018-2014	6 years - 10 years	\$	23.18	\$	27.02	\$	28.14
2013-2009	11 years - 15 years	\$	23.18	\$	27.56	\$	28.42
2008-2004	16 years - 20 years	\$	23.18	\$	28.11	\$	28.70
2003 +	21 years +	\$	23.18	\$	28.67	\$	28.99

5/5/2025 (3 %)							
		Group	A	Grou	ир В	Gro	up C
	Starting						
2025	0 year	Range S	\$18.00-\$20.00	\$22	.00-\$24.00	\$24	.00-\$26.00
2024	1 year	\$	21.85	\$	26.22	\$	28.13
2023	2 years	\$	22.51	\$	26.75	\$	28.41
2022-2020	3 years - 5 years	\$	23.18	\$	27.28	\$	28.70
2019-2015	6 years - 10 years	\$	23.88	\$	27.83	\$	28.98
2014-2010	11 years - 15 years	\$	23.88	\$	28.38	\$	29.27
2009-2005	16 years - 20 years	\$	23.88	\$	28.95	\$	29.56
2004 +	21 years +	\$	23.88	\$	29.53	\$	29.86

DEFINITION OF GROUPS

Group A				
Job Title	Pr	emium		
Full Time Tellers				
Member Service Representatives under 2 years				
*Grandfathered FPCU MSR group, moved to Group B				
Part Time (All Positions)				
Subject Matter Experts	\$	0.25		

Group B		
Job Title	Р	remium
ACH/Card Services		
Collections		
Compliance		
Consumer Loan Opportunity Consultants		
Contact Center Representative/OMNI AGENTS		
Digital MSR		
Facilities		
Fraud		
Loan Processing Clerk		
Loan Processors		
Member Service Representative 2-15 years *Grandfathered		
FPCU MSR group, moved to Group B		
Mortgage Processors		
Mortgage Servicer		
Operations		
Subject Matter Experts	\$	0.25

Group C	
Job Title	Premium
Accounting	\$ 1.71
I.T. Analyst	\$ 2.00
Loan Officer	
Member Service Representative 16 years plus	
Mortgage Closers	\$ 1.00
Subject Matter Experts	\$ 0.25
Universal Service Rep *Willingly put on schedule as CC, MSR, Teller for the week	\$ 0.30
Universal Contact Center Agents *Willingly takes inbound calls, chat, employees and outbound sales calls	\$ 0.30

**If the case of a Subject Matter Expert (SME) makes a higher premium, we will not combine premiums

**Subject Matter Expert is per department upon Manger and L&D approval, L&D gets to select,

will be involved in trainings for the department, provide up to date procedural changes, etc. \$39\$

ARTICLE 21 – TERMINATION CLAUSE

<u>Section 1:</u> This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from **July 3, 2023**, to and including **May 31**, **2026**, and shall continue in full force and effect from year to year thereafter unless written notice of desire to terminate, modify, or make changes in said Agreement is served by either party upon the other at least sixty (60) days prior to the date of expiration.

<u>Section 2:</u> In the event of a failure by either party to give the notice set forth in Section 1 of this Article, such party may give such notice at any time prior to the termination or automatic renewal date of this Agreement. If a notice is given in accordance with the provisions of this section, the expiration date of this Agreement shall be the sixty-first (61st) day following such notice.

FINANCIAL PLUS CREDIT UNION

OFFICE AND PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION

—Docusigned by: Brad Burgmoosur

— D384S6GBBBBBBBH448E... Deanna Wallace

-7223DCC90D5A42D...

DocuSigned by:

Sharon Taylor

Baschki Robertson

Mackenzie Holcomb

E2CD53C7833E441...

-DocuSigned by:

DocuSigned/bg467

Kristine Bourbina

Doretta Alexander

06638388E888A0F..